

AN ACT

To amend sections 101.84, 173.58, 183.04, 183.12, 183.20, 3109.401, 3304.24, 3318.30, 3333.373, 3701.264, 3717.02, 4723.71, 4765.04, 4928.58, 5101.343, 5153.66, and 6301.04, to amend, for the purpose of adopting a new section number as indicated in parentheses, section 101.84 (101.83), and to enact new section 101.84 and sections 101.85, 101.86, and 101.87 of the Revised Code and to amend Section 3 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 123rd General Assembly, Section 4 of Sub. H.B. 538 of the 123rd General Assembly, and Section 27 of Sub. H.B. 670 of the 121st General Assembly to extend the expiration date of a number of state agencies, to create the Sunset Review Committee, and to terminate the operation of certain provisions of this act on December 31, 2004, by repealing sections 101.84, 101.85, 101.86, and 101.87 of the Revised Code on that date.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio:

SECTION 1. That sections 101.84, 173.58, 183.04, 183.12, 183.20, 3109.401, 3304.24, 3318.30, 3333.373, 3701.264, 3717.02, 4723.71, 4765.04, 4928.58, 5101.343, 5153.66, and 6301.04 be amended, section 101.84 (101.83) be amended for the purpose of adopting a new section number as indicated in parentheses, and new section 101.84 and sections 101.85, 101.86, and 101.87 of the Revised Code be enacted to read as follows:

Sec. ~~101.84~~ 101.83. (A) An agency in existence on January 1, ~~1997~~ 2001, shall expire on December 31, 2004, unless the agency is renewed in accordance with division (D) of this section and, if so renewed, shall expire thereafter on the thirty-first day of December of the fourth year after the year in which it was most recently renewed; unless the agency is renewed in

accordance with division (D) of this section. An agency created after January 1, ~~1997~~ 2001, that is created on the thirty-first day of December shall expire not later than four years after its creation, unless the agency is renewed in accordance with division (D) of this section. An agency created after January 1, ~~1997~~ 2001, that is created on any other date shall be considered for the purpose of this section to have been created on the preceding thirty-first day of December, and the agency shall expire not later than four years after the date it was considered to have been created, unless the agency is renewed in accordance with division (D) of this section. Any act creating or renewing an agency shall contain a distinct section providing a specific expiration date for the agency in accordance with this division.

(B) If the general assembly does not renew or transfer an agency on or before its expiration date, it shall expire on that date.

The auditor of state shall not authorize the expenditure of any moneys for any agency on or after the date of its expiration.

(C) The general assembly may provide by law for the orderly, efficient, and expeditious conclusion of an agency's business and operation. The rules, orders, licenses, contracts, and other actions made, taken, granted, or performed by the agency shall continue in effect according to their terms notwithstanding the agency's abolition, unless the general assembly provides otherwise by law. The general assembly may provide by law for the temporary or permanent transfer of some or all of a terminated or transferred agency's functions and personnel to a successor agency or officer.

The abolition, termination, or transfer of an agency shall not cause the termination or dismissal of any claim pending against the agency by any person, or any claim pending against any person by the agency. Unless the general assembly provides otherwise by law for the ~~substitution~~ substitution of parties, the attorney general shall succeed the agency with reference to any pending claim.

(D) An agency may be renewed by passage of a bill that continues the statutes creating and empowering the agency ~~or~~, that amends or repeals those statutes, or that enacts new statutes, to improve agency usefulness, performance, or effectiveness.

Sec. 101.84. (A) There is hereby created the sunset review committee, to be composed of nine members. The president of the senate shall appoint three members of the senate to the committee, not more than two of whom shall be members of the same political party. The speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint three members of the house of representatives to the committee, not more than two of whom shall be members of the same political party. The governor, with the advice and consent of the senate,

shall appoint three members to the committee, not more than two of whom shall be members of the same political party. Members shall be appointed within fifteen days after the commencement of the first regular session of each general assembly.

(B) Each member of the committee who is appointed by the president of the senate or the speaker of the house of representatives shall serve until that committee member's successor is appointed or until that committee member no longer is a member of the senate or the house of representatives, whichever is applicable. Each member of the committee who is appointed by the governor shall serve a two-year term that ends on the thirty-first day of December of each even-numbered year. A vacancy on the committee shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment.

In the first regular session of a general assembly, the chairperson of the committee shall be a member of the house of representatives, and the vice-chairperson of the committee shall be a member of the senate. In the second regular session of the general assembly, the chairperson of the committee shall be a member of the senate, and the vice-chairperson of the committee shall be a member of the house of representatives.

Members of the committee shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed for their necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties.

(C) The committee shall meet not later than thirty days after the first day of the first regular session of the general assembly to choose a chairperson and to commence establishment of the schedule for agency review provided for in section 101.85 of the Revised Code or perform other committee duties under sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code. Five members of the committee shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of committee business.

Sec. 101.85. (A) The sunset review committee, not later than sixty days after its first meeting in 2001, shall schedule for review each agency in existence on January 1, 2001. The committee, by a unanimous vote, also may schedule for review any state board or commission described in division (A)(9) of section 101.82 of the Revised Code that is in existence on that date, and any board or commission so scheduled shall be considered an agency for purposes of sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code.

(B) The chairperson of the committee shall send a copy of the schedule for review of agencies for each calendar year to each of the agencies scheduled for review during that year and to the director of the legislative service commission. The director shall publish a copy of the schedule in the Ohio Administrative Code and in the register of Ohio created under section 103.051 of the Revised Code. The commission shall provide the committee

with a list of agencies, and state boards and commissions described in division (A)(9) of section 101.82 of the Revised Code, in existence on January 1, 2001, to assist the committee in identifying agencies and exercising its duties under sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code with respect to those agencies.

Sec. 101.86. (A) Not later than twelve months prior to the date on which an agency in existence on January 1, 2001, is scheduled to expire under division (A) of section 101.83 of the Revised Code, the sunset review committee shall hold hearings to receive the testimony of the public and of the chief executive officer of each agency scheduled for review and otherwise shall consider and evaluate the usefulness, performance, and effectiveness of the agency.

(B) Each agency that is scheduled for review shall submit to the committee a report that contains all of the following information:

- (1) The agency's primary purpose and its various goals and objectives;
- (2) The agency's past and anticipated workload, the number of staff required to complete that workload, and the agency's total number of staff;
- (3) The agency's past and anticipated budgets and its sources of funding;
- (4) The number of members of its governing board or other entity and their compensation, if any.

(C) Each agency shall have the burden of demonstrating to the committee a public need for its continued existence. In determining whether an agency has demonstrated that need, the committee shall consider all of the following:

- (1) The extent to which the agency has permitted qualified applicants to serve the public;
- (2) The cost-effectiveness of the agency in terms of number of employees, services rendered, and administrative costs incurred, both past and present;
- (3) The extent to which the agency has operated in the public interest, and whether its operation has been impeded or enhanced by existing statutes and procedures and by budgetary, resource, and personnel practices;
- (4) Whether the agency has recommended statutory changes to the general assembly that would benefit the public as opposed to the persons regulated by the agency, if any, and whether its recommendations and other policies have been adopted and implemented;
- (5) Whether the agency has required any persons it regulates to report to it the impact of agency rules and decisions on the public as they affect service costs and service delivery;
- (6) Whether persons regulated by the agency, if any, have been required

to assess problems in their business operations that affect the public:

(7) Whether the agency has encouraged public participation in its rule-making and decision-making;

(8) The efficiency with which formal public complaints filed with the agency have been processed to completion;

(9) Whether the programs or services of the agency duplicate or overlap those of other agencies;

(10) Whether the purpose for which the agency was created has been fulfilled, has changed, or no longer exists;

(11) Whether federal law requires that the agency be renewed in some form;

(12) Changes needed in the enabling laws of the agency in order for it to comply with the criteria suggested by the considerations listed in divisions (C)(1) to (11) of this section.

(D) In its initial review of each agency, the committee, whenever possible, shall realign agency titles to conform to the following descriptions:

(1) Commission: an administrative appeals or hearing agency;

(2) Authority: an agency empowered to issue bonds or notes;

(3) Board: an agency having a licensing function only;

(4) Council: an advisory body to a major agency or department;

(5) Committee: an advisory body to a minor agency or department.

Sec. 101.87. (A) After the completion of the evaluation of all agencies under section 101.86 of the Revised Code, the sunset review committee shall prepare and publish a report of its findings and recommendations. The committee shall furnish a copy of the report to the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives, the governor, and each affected agency. The report shall be made available to the public in the offices of the house and senate clerks during reasonable hours. As part of the report, the committee shall recommend to the general assembly, in bill form, one or more of the following:

(1) Amendment or repeal of the statutes that created and empowered an agency, to abolish or terminate the agency;

(2) Amendment or repeal of the statutes that created and empowered an agency, or enactment of new statutes, to terminate the agency, to transfer the agency, or to improve the agency's usefulness, performance, or effectiveness;

(3) Amendment or repeal of the statutes that created and empowered two or more agencies, or enactment of new statutes, to reorganize or transfer them and thereby improve agency usefulness, performance, or effectiveness;

(4) Amendment or continuation of the statutes that created and

empowered an agency, or enactment of new statutes, to renew the agency.

(B) Recommendations made by the committee shall indicate how or whether their implementation will do each of the following:

- (1) Promote economy in the operation of state government;
- (2) Improve efficiency in the management of state government;
- (3) Improve services rendered to citizens of the state;
- (4) Simplify and improve preparation of the state budget;
- (5) Conserve the natural resources of the state;
- (6) Promote the orderly growth of the state and its government;
- (7) Improve the effectiveness of the services performed by the service departments of the state, including the office of budget and management and the department of administrative services;
- (8) Avoid duplication of effort by state agencies;
- (9) Improve the organization and coordination of the state government in one or more of the ways listed in divisions (B)(1) to (8) of this section.

(C) The office of budget and management, department of administrative services, auditor of state, legislative service commission, and any other state agency shall supply, upon the committee's request, the committee with material, information, and reports needed for the preparation of the report and its recommendations.

Sec. 173.58. (A) There is hereby created the long-term care consumer guide advisory council. The council shall be convened by the director of aging and shall consist of the following members:

- (1) A representative of the department of aging, appointed by the director of aging;
- (2) A representative of the department of health, appointed by the director of health;
- (3) A representative of the department of job and family services, appointed by the director of job and family services;
- (4) The state long-term care ombudsperson;
- (5) A family member of a nursing facility resident, appointed by the governor;
- (6) A representative of the Ohio association of area agencies on aging, appointed by the president of the association;
- (7) Two representatives of the Ohio health care association, appointed by the chief administrator of the association;
- (8) Two representatives of the association of Ohio philanthropic homes, housing, and services for the aging, appointed by the chief administrator of the association;
- (9) Two representatives of the Ohio academy of nursing homes,

appointed by the chief administrator of the academy;

(10) A representative of the Ohio association of regional long-term care ombudsmen, appointed by the chief administrator of the association;

(11) A representative of the Ohio chapter of the American association of retired persons, appointed by the chief administrator of the chapter;

(12) A representative of a consumer group or other not-for-profit entity that is organized for the purpose of promoting improved care for nursing home residents, appointed by the governor;

(13) A representative of a research organization, appointed by the chief administrator of the organization. The research organization represented shall be selected by the director of aging from among research organizations in this state that have experience in long-term care policy matters.

Each council member shall serve at the discretion of the authority that appointed the member. Each member shall serve without compensation or reimbursement for expenses, except to the extent that serving as a member of the council is part of the member's regular duties of employment.

The member serving as the representative of the department of aging shall serve as the council's chairperson. The department shall supply meeting space and staff support for the council.

(B) The council's duties include all of the following:

(1) To help develop and review rules to be adopted by the department of aging under section 173.57 of the Revised Code;

(2) To recommend administrative practices to the department for improving the operation and content of the Ohio long-term care consumer guide;

(3) To recommend legislative changes to the department needed to improve the consumer guide;

(4) To consider whether it is feasible to include in the consumer guide other long-term care facilities, such as residential care facilities and intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded, and long-term care service providers, such as home health agencies and adult day service providers;

(5) To consider whether it is feasible to include in the consumer guide measurements of quality of life standards.

(C) The long-term care consumer guide advisory council is not subject to ~~section 101.84~~ sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 183.04. There is hereby created the tobacco use prevention and control foundation, the general management of which is vested in a board of trustees of twenty members as follows:

(A) Eight members who are health professionals, health researchers, or

representatives of health organizations. Two of these members shall be appointed by the governor, two by the speaker of the house of representatives, one by the minority leader of the house of representatives, two by the president of the senate, and one by the minority leader of the senate.

(B) Two members, one of whom has experience in financial planning and accounting and one of whom has experience in media and mass marketing, who shall be appointed by the governor;

(C) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the American cancer society;

(D) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the American heart association;

(E) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the American lung association;

(F) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the association of hospitals and health systems;

(G) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the Ohio state medical association;

(H) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the association of Ohio health commissioners;

(I) One member, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least three individuals recommended by the Ohio dental association;

(J) The director of health, executive director of the commission on minority health, and attorney general, who shall serve as ex officio members.

The appointments of the governor shall be with the advice and consent of the senate.

Terms of office for the members appointed by the governor, president, speaker, and minority leaders shall be for five years. Each member shall hold office from the date of appointment until the end of the term for which the member was appointed. Any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the member's predecessor was appointed shall hold office for the remainder of that term. Any member shall continue in office subsequent to the expiration date of the member's term until the member's successor takes office, or until a period of sixty days has elapsed, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. The

governor may remove any member for malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance after a hearing in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

The members of the board shall serve without compensation but shall receive their reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the conduct of foundation business.

~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does do~~ not apply to the foundation.

Sec. 183.12. There is hereby created the southern Ohio agricultural and community development foundation, the general management of which is vested in a board of trustees of twelve members as follows:

(A) The director of agriculture, director of development, executive director of the Ohio rural development partnership, and director of the Ohio state university extension, who shall serve as ex officio officers;

(B) Two residents of major tobacco-producing counties with experience in local agricultural economic development or community development appointed by the governor;

(C) Three active farmers from major tobacco-producing counties, who shall be appointed by the governor, two of whom shall be appointed from a list of at least four individuals recommended by the Ohio farm bureau and one of whom shall be appointed from a list of at least two individuals recommended by the farmers' union;

(D) Three active tobacco farmers from major tobacco-producing counties, who shall be appointed by the governor from a list of at least six individuals recommended by the Ohio tobacco growers association.

The appointments of the governor shall be with the advice and consent of the senate.

Terms of office for the members appointed by the governor shall be for five years. Each such member shall hold office from the date of appointment until the end of the term for which the member was appointed. Any member appointed by the governor to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the member's predecessor was appointed shall hold office for the remainder of such term. Any member appointed by the governor shall continue in office subsequent to the expiration date of the member's term until the member's successor takes office, or until a period of sixty days has elapsed, whichever occurs first. The governor may remove any member appointed by the governor for malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance after a hearing in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

A vacancy on the board shall be filled in the same manner as the

original appointment.

The members of the board shall serve without compensation but shall receive their reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the conduct of foundation business.

~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to the foundation.

As used in this section, "major tobacco-producing counties" means any of the counties, ranked in descending order of pounds produced, where ninety-five per cent of the 1998 burley tobacco quota for the state was produced.

Sec. 183.20. There is hereby created the biomedical research and technology transfer commission within the Ohio board of regents. The commission shall consist of twenty-five members as follows:

(A) The chancellor of the board, director of development, director of health, and executive director of the commission on minority health, who shall serve as ex officio members;

(B) The director of budget and management, who shall serve as an ex officio member, or the director's designee;

(C) Twelve members, who shall not be or represent potential recipients of grants from the commission, appointed as follows:

(1) Six members, appointed by the governor, at least two of whom are experts in commercializing the results of biomedical research;

(2) Two members appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives;

(3) One member appointed by the minority leader of the house of representatives;

(4) Two members appointed by the president of the senate;

(5) One member appointed by the minority leader of the senate.

(D) Eight nonvoting members appointed by the governor, representing Ohio's biomedical research institutions.

Before making their appointments, the governor, speaker, president, and minority leaders shall solicit, from the state's medical colleges, dental colleges, and medical research institutions, the national institutes of health, and other sources familiar with experts in the field of biomedical research and in commercializing the results of ~~such~~ biomedical research, recommendations as to whom to appoint.

The appointments of the governor shall be with the advice and consent of the senate.

Terms of office for the members appointed by the governor, president, speaker, and minority leaders shall be for five years. Each member shall

hold office from the date of appointment until the end of the term for which the member was appointed. Any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the member's predecessor was appointed shall hold office for the remainder of such term. Any member shall continue in office subsequent to the expiration date of the member's term until the member's successor takes office, or until a period of sixty days has elapsed, whichever occurs first. A vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. The governor may remove any member for malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance after a hearing in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

The members of the commission shall serve without compensation but shall receive their reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the conduct of commission business.

~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to the commission.

Sec. 3109.401. (A) The general assembly finds the following:

(1) That the parent and child relationship is of fundamental importance to the welfare of a child, and that the relationship between a child and each parent should be fostered unless inconsistent with the child's best interests;

(2) That parents have the responsibility to make decisions and perform other parenting functions necessary for the care and growth of their children;

(3) That the courts, when allocating parenting functions and responsibilities with respect to the child in a divorce, dissolution of marriage, legal separation, annulment, or any other proceeding addressing the allocation of parental rights and responsibilities, must determine the child's best interests;

(4) That the courts and parents must take into consideration the following general principles when allocating parental rights and responsibilities and developing appropriate terms for parenting plans:

(a) Children are served by a parenting arrangement that best provides for a child's safety, emotional growth, health, stability, and physical care.

(b) Exposure of the child to harmful parental conflict should be minimized as much as possible.

(c) Whenever appropriate, parents should be encouraged to meet their responsibilities to their children through agreements rather than by relying on judicial intervention.

(d) When a parenting plan provides for mutual decision-making responsibility by the parents but they are unable to make decisions mutually, they should make a good faith effort to utilize the mediation process as

equired by the parenting plan.

(e) In apportioning between the parents the daily physical living arrangements of the child and the child's location during legal and school holidays, vacations, and days of special importance, a court should not impose any type of standard schedule unless a standard schedule meets the needs of the child better than any proposed alternative parenting plan.

(B) It is, therefore, the purpose of ~~Chapter 3109. of the Revised Code~~ this chapter, when it is in the child's best interest, to foster the relationship between the child and each parent when a court allocates parental rights and responsibilities with respect to the child in a divorce, dissolution, legal separation, annulment, or any other proceeding addressing the allocation of parental rights and responsibilities.

(C) There is hereby created the task force on family law and children consisting of twenty-four members. The Ohio state bar association shall appoint three members who shall be attorneys with extensive experience in the practice of family law. The Ohio association of domestic relations judges shall appoint three members who shall be domestic relations judges. The Ohio association of juvenile and family court judges shall appoint three members who shall be juvenile or family court judges. The chief justice of the supreme court shall appoint eight members, three of whom shall be persons who practice in the field of family law mediation, two of whom shall be persons who practice in the field of child psychology, one of whom shall be a person who represents parent and child advocacy organizations, one of whom shall be a person who provides parenting education services, and one of whom shall be a magistrate employed by a domestic relations or juvenile court. The speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint two members who shall be members of the house of representatives and who shall be from different political parties. The president of the senate shall appoint two members who shall be members of the senate and who shall be from different political parties. The governor shall appoint two members who shall represent child caring agencies. One member shall be the director of job and family services or the director's designee. The chief justice shall designate one member of the task force to chair the task force.

The appointing authorities and persons shall make appointments to the task force on family law and children within thirty days after September 1, 1998. ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to the task force.

(D) The task force on family law and children shall do all of the following:

(1) Appoint and fix the compensation of any technical, professional, and

clerical employees and perform any services that are necessary to carry out the powers and duties of the task force on family law and children. All employees of the task force shall serve at the pleasure of the task force.

(2) By July 1, 2001, submit to the speaker and minority leader of the house of representatives and to the president and the minority leader of the senate a report of its findings and recommendations on how to create a more civilized and constructive process for the parenting of children whose parents do not reside together. The recommendations shall propose a system to do all of the following:

- (a) Put children first;
- (b) Provide families with choices before they make a decision to obtain or finalize a divorce, dissolution, legal separation, or annulment;
- (c) Redirect human services to intervention and prevention, rather than supporting the casualties of the current process;
- (d) Avoid needless conflict between the participants;
- (e) Encourage problem solving among the participants;
- (f) Force the participants to act responsibly;
- (g) Shield both the participants and their children from lasting emotional damage.

(3) Gather information on and study the current state of family law in this state;

(4) Collaborate and consult with entities engaged in family and children's issues including, but not limited to, the Ohio association of child caring agencies, the Ohio family court feasibility study, and the Ohio courts futures commission;

(5) Utilize findings and outcomes from pilot projects conducted by the Ohio family court feasibility study to explore alternatives in creating a more civilized and constructive process for the parenting of children whose parents do not reside together with an emphasis on the areas of mediation and obtaining visitation compliance.

(E) Courts of common pleas shall cooperate with the task force on family law and children in the performance of the task force's duties described in division (D) of this section.

Sec. 3304.24. The rehabilitation services commission shall appoint; ~~upon the recommendation of the appropriate bureau director, a bureau of vocational rehabilitation~~ consumer advisory committee, ~~including at least two disabled persons, and a bureau of services for the visually impaired advisory committee, including at least two legally blind persons, which committees shall have the organization and duties given them by the commission. The~~

~~The~~ commission may appoint ~~such~~ additional advisory committees as it finds necessary.

Sec. 3318.30. (A) There is hereby created the Ohio school facilities commission. The commission shall administer the provision of financial assistance to school districts for the acquisition or construction of classroom facilities in accordance with sections 3318.01 to 3318.33 of the Revised Code.

The commission is a body corporate and politic, an agency of state government and an instrumentality of the state, performing essential governmental functions of this state. The carrying out of the purposes and the exercise by the commission of its powers conferred by sections 3318.01 to 3318.33 of the Revised Code are essential public functions and public purposes of the state. The commission may, in its own name, sue and be sued, enter into contracts, and perform all the powers and duties given to it by sections 3318.01 to 3318.33 of the Revised Code, but it does not have and shall not exercise the power of eminent domain.

(B) The commission shall consist of seven members, three of whom are voting members. The voting members of the commission shall be the director of the office of budget and management, the director of administrative services, and the superintendent of public instruction, or their designees. Of the nonvoting members, two shall be members of the senate appointed by the president of the senate, and two shall be members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker of the house. Each of the appointees of the president, and each of the appointees of the speaker, shall be members of different political parties.

Nonvoting members shall serve as members of the commission during the legislative biennium for which they are appointed, except that any such member who ceases to be a member of the legislative house from which the member was appointed shall cease to be a member of the commission. Each nonvoting member shall be appointed within thirty-one days of the end of the term of that member's predecessor. Such members may be reappointed. Vacancies of nonvoting members shall be filled in the manner provided for original appointments.

Members of the commission shall serve without compensation.

After the initial nonvoting members of the commission have been appointed, the commission shall meet and organize by electing voting members as the chairperson and vice-chairperson of the commission, who shall hold their offices until the next organizational meeting of the commission. Organizational meetings of the commission shall be held at the first meeting of each calendar year. At each organizational meeting, the

commission shall elect from among its voting members a chairperson and vice-chairperson, who shall serve until the next annual organizational meeting. The commission shall adopt rules pursuant to section 111.15 of the Revised Code for the conduct of its internal business and shall keep a journal of its proceedings. Including the organizational meeting, the commission shall meet at least once each calendar quarter.

Two voting members of the commission constitute a quorum, and the affirmative vote of two members is necessary for approval of any action taken by the commission. A vacancy in the membership of the commission does not impair a quorum from exercising all the rights and performing all the duties of the commission. Meetings of the commission may be held anywhere in the state, and shall be held in compliance with section 121.22 of the Revised Code.

(C) The commission shall file an annual report of its activities and finances with the governor, speaker of the house of representatives, president of the senate, and chairpersons of the house and senate finance committees.

(D) The commission shall be exempt from the requirements of sections 101.82 ~~and 101.84~~ to 101.87 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3333.373. (A) The board of regents shall establish the rules advisory committee, which shall consist of the chancellor of the Ohio board of regents or the chancellor's designee, the treasurer of state or the treasurer of state's designee, the director of development or the director's designee, one state senator appointed by the president of the senate, one state representative appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, and two public members appointed by the chancellor representing the interests of the state-assisted eligible institutions and private nonprofit eligible institutions, respectively.

(B) The committee, within one hundred twenty days after ~~the effective date of this section~~ June 8, 2000, shall provide recommendations to the Ohio board of regents as to ~~such~~ rules, criteria, and guidelines ~~as are~~ necessary and appropriate to implement the scholarship and fellowship programs created by sections 3333.37 to 3333.375 of the Revised Code.

(C) The committee shall meet at least annually to review the scholarship and fellowship programs guidelines; make recommendations to amend, rescind, or modify the policy guidelines; and approve scholarship and fellowship awards to eligible students.

(D) ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to this section.

Sec. 3701.264. There is hereby created the Ohio cancer incidence

surveillance system advisory board. The board shall consist of the director of health, who shall serve as chair of the board, and one representative, appointed by the governor, from each medical school accredited by the liaison committee on medical education and each osteopathic medical school accredited by the American osteopathic association in Ohio. In addition, the director of health shall appoint up to three additional members of the board. Vacancies on the board shall be filled in the same manner as the initial appointments. Members shall serve without compensation.

The board shall provide oversight of the collection and analysis of data by the cancer surveillance system to the director of health and the Arthur G. James cancer hospital and Richard J. Solove research institute of the Ohio state university and advise in the implementation of sections 3701.261 to 3701.263 of the Revised Code. The board shall meet and conduct its business as directed by the chair.

The board shall report to the finance committees of both houses of the general assembly, not later than March 1, 2001, on the progress made in implementing sections 3701.261 to 3701.263 of the Revised Code.

The board is not subject to ~~section 101.84~~ sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3717.02. (A) There is hereby created the retail food safety advisory council. The council shall consist of the director of agriculture or a person the director designates to serve on the director's behalf, the director of health or a person the director designates to serve on the director's behalf, and twelve additional members appointed jointly by the director of agriculture and the director of health, as follows:

- (1) Three persons representing the interests of retail food establishments;
- (2) Three persons representing the interests of food service operations;
- (3) Four persons representing boards of health or the health departments operated by boards of health;
- (4) One person representing the academic community who is knowledgeable in food science or food technology;
- (5) One person representing the general public who is not employed by this state or any of its political subdivisions and has no pecuniary interest in a retail food establishment or food service operation.

(B) In making appointments to the council, the director of agriculture and director of health shall jointly consult with statewide trade and professional organizations that represent the interests of retail food establishments and food service operations. The organizations may nominate persons to be considered for appointment as council members.

(C) Of the initial appointments made to the council, five shall be for terms ending three years after appointment, four shall be for terms ending two years after appointment, and three shall be for terms ending one year after appointment. Thereafter, terms of office shall be three years. Each member shall hold office from the date of appointment until the end of the term for which the member was appointed. Members may be reappointed.

Vacancies shall be filled in the manner provided for original appointments. A member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring before the expiration date of the term for which the member's predecessor was appointed shall hold office as a member for the remainder of that term. A member shall continue in office after the expiration date of the member's term until the member's successor takes office or until a period of sixty days has elapsed, whichever occurs first.

(D) A member may be removed from office for failing to attend two consecutive council meetings without showing good cause for the absences. Removal from office requires joint action by the director of agriculture and director of health.

(E) The director of agriculture or the person the director designates to serve on the director's behalf, and the director of health or the person the director designates to serve on the director's behalf, shall serve as the council's co-chairpersons without voting rights. A two-thirds majority vote of the council's voting members is necessary for the council to act on any matter.

(F) Members shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in performing duties as members. The expenses shall be shared equally by the department of agriculture and the department of health. Both departments shall provide administrative support to the council.

(G) The retail food safety advisory council is not subject to ~~section 101.84~~ sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 4723.71. (A) There is hereby established, under the board of nursing, the advisory group on dialysis. The advisory group shall advise the board of nursing regarding the qualifications, standards for training, and competence of dialysis technicians and all other matters related to dialysis technicians. The advisory group shall consist of the members appointed under divisions (B) and (C) of this section. A member of the board of nursing or a representative appointed by the board shall serve as chairperson of all meetings of the advisory group.

(B) The board of nursing shall appoint the following as members of the advisory group:

- (1) Four dialysis technicians;

(2) A registered nurse who regularly performs dialysis and cares for patients who receive dialysis;

(3) A physician, recommended by the state medical board, who specializes in nephrology;

(4) An administrator of a dialysis center;

(5) A dialysis patient;

(6) A representative of the association for hospitals and health systems (OHA);

(7) A representative from the end-stage renal disease network, as defined in 42 C.F.R. 405.2102.

(C) The members of the advisory group appointed under division (B) of this section may recommend additional persons to serve as members of the advisory group. The board of nursing may appoint, as appropriate, any of the additional persons recommended.

(D) The board of nursing shall specify the terms for the advisory group members. Members shall serve at the discretion of the board of nursing. Members shall receive their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties.

(E) ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to the advisory group.

Sec. 4765.04. (A) The firefighter and fire safety inspector training committee of the state board of emergency medical services is hereby created and shall consist of the members of the board who are chiefs of fire departments, and the members of the board who are emergency medical technicians-basic, emergency medical technicians-intermediate, and emergency medical technicians-paramedic appointed from among persons nominated by the Ohio association of professional fire fighters or the northern Ohio fire fighters and from among persons nominated by the Ohio state firefighter's association. Each member of the committee, except the chairperson, may designate a person with fire experience to serve in that member's place. The members of the committee or their designees shall select a chairperson from among the members or their designees.

(B) The trauma committee of the state board of emergency medical services is hereby created and shall consist of the following members appointed by the director of public safety:

(1) A physician who is certified by the American board of surgery or American osteopathic board of surgery and actively practices general trauma surgery, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American college of surgeons, three persons nominated by the Ohio state medical association, and three persons nominated by the Ohio

osteopathic association;

(2) A physician who is certified by the American board of surgery or the American osteopathic board of surgery and actively practices orthopedic trauma surgery, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio orthopedic society and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(3) A physician who is certified by the American board of neurological surgeons or the American osteopathic board of surgery and actively practices neurosurgery on trauma victims, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio state neurological society and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(4) A physician who is certified by the American board of surgeons or American osteopathic board of surgeons and actively specializes in treating burn victims, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American college of surgeons and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(5) A dentist who is certified by the American board of oral and maxillofacial surgery and actively practices oral and maxillofacial surgery, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio dental association;

(6) A physician who is certified by the American board of physical medicine and rehabilitation or American osteopathic board of rehabilitation medicine and actively provides rehabilitative care to trauma victims, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio society of physical medicine and rehabilitation and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(7) A physician who is certified by the American board of surgery or American osteopathic board of surgery with special qualifications in pediatric surgery and actively practices pediatric trauma surgery, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American academy of pediatrics and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(8) A physician who is certified by the American board of emergency medicine or American osteopathic board of emergency medicine, actively practices emergency medicine, and is actively involved in emergency medical services, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American college of emergency physicians and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(9) A physician who is certified by the American board of pediatrics, American osteopathic board of pediatrics, or American board of emergency

medicine, is sub-boarded in pediatric emergency medicine, actively practices pediatric emergency medicine, and is actively involved in emergency medical services, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American academy of pediatrics, three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the American college of emergency physicians, and three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association;

(10) A physician who is certified by the American board of surgery, American osteopathic board of surgery, or American board of emergency medicine and is the chief medical officer of an air medical organization, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio association of air medical services;

(11) A coroner or medical examiner appointed from among three people nominated by the Ohio state coroners' association;

(12) A registered nurse who actively practices trauma nursing at an adult or pediatric trauma center, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio association of trauma nurse coordinators;

(13) A registered nurse who actively practices emergency nursing and is actively involved in emergency medical services, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio chapter of the emergency nurses' association;

(14) The chief trauma registrar of an adult or pediatric trauma center, appointed from among three persons nominated by the alliance of Ohio trauma registrars;

(15) The administrator of an adult or pediatric trauma center, appointed from among three persons nominated by OHA: the association for hospitals and health systems, three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association, three persons nominated by the association of Ohio children's hospitals, and three persons nominated by the health forum of Ohio;

(16) The administrator of a hospital that is not a trauma center and actively provides emergency care to adult or pediatric trauma patients, appointed from among three persons nominated by OHA: the association for hospitals and health systems, three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association, three persons nominated by the association of Ohio children's hospitals, and three persons nominated by the health forum of Ohio;

(17) The operator of an ambulance company that actively provides trauma care to emergency patients, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio ambulance association;

(18) The chief of a fire department that actively provides trauma care to

emergency patients, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio fire chiefs' association;

(19) An EMT or paramedic who is certified under this chapter and actively provides trauma care to emergency patients, appointed from among three persons nominated by the Ohio association of professional firefighters, three persons nominated by the northern Ohio fire fighters, three persons nominated by the Ohio state firefighters' association, and three persons nominated by the Ohio association of emergency medical services;

(20) A person who actively advocates for trauma victims, appointed from three persons nominated by the Ohio brain injury association and three persons nominated by the governor's council on people with disabilities;

(21) A physician or nurse who has substantial administrative responsibility for trauma care provided in or by an adult or pediatric trauma center, appointed from among three persons nominated by OHA: the association for hospitals and health systems, three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association, three persons nominated by the association of Ohio children's hospitals, and three persons nominated by the health forum of Ohio;

(22) Three representatives of hospitals that are not trauma centers and actively provide emergency care to trauma patients, appointed from among three persons nominated by OHA: the association for hospitals and health systems, three persons nominated by the Ohio osteopathic association, three persons nominated by the association of Ohio children's hospitals, and three persons nominated by the health forum of Ohio. The representatives may be hospital administrators, physicians, nurses, or other clinical professionals.

Members of the committee shall have substantial experience in the categories they represent, shall be residents of this state, and may be members of the state board of emergency medical services. In appointing members of the committee, the director shall attempt to include members representing urban and rural areas, various geographical areas of the state, and various schools of training. The director shall not appoint to the committee more than one member who is employed by or practices at the same hospital, health system, or emergency medical service organization.

The director may refuse to appoint any of the persons nominated by an organization or organizations under this division. In that event, the organization or organizations shall continue to nominate the required number of persons until the director appoints to the committee one or more of the persons nominated by the organization or organizations.

Initial appointments to the committee shall be made by the director not later than ninety days after ~~the effective date of this section~~ November 3,

2000 Members of the committee shall serve at the pleasure of the director, except that any member of the committee who ceases to be qualified for the position to which the member was appointed shall cease to be a member of the committee. Vacancies on the committee shall be filled in the same manner as original appointments.

The members of the committee shall serve without compensation, but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in carrying out duties as members of the committee.

The committee shall select a chairperson and vice-chairperson from among its members. A majority of all members of the committee shall constitute a quorum. No action shall be taken without the concurrence of a majority of all members of the committee. The committee shall meet at the call of the chair, upon written request of five members of the committee, and at the direction of the state board of emergency medical services. The committee shall not meet at times or locations that conflict with meetings of the board. The executive director and medical director of the state board of emergency medical services may participate in any meeting of the committee and shall do so at the request of the committee.

The committee shall advise and assist the state board of emergency medical services in matters related to adult and pediatric trauma care and the establishment and operation of the state trauma registry. In matters relating to the state trauma registry, the board and the committee shall consult with trauma registrars from adult and pediatric trauma centers in the state. The committee may appoint a subcommittee to advise and assist with the trauma registry. The subcommittee may include persons with expertise relevant to the trauma registry who are not members of the board or committee.

(C) The state board of emergency medical services may appoint other committees and subcommittees as it considers necessary.

(D) The state board of emergency medical services, and any of its committees or subcommittees, may request assistance from any state agency. The board and its committees and subcommittees may permit persons who are not members of those bodies to participate in deliberations of those bodies, but no person who is not a member of the board shall vote on the board and no person who is not a member of a committee created under division (A) or (B) of this section shall vote on that committee.

(E) ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does~~ do not apply to the committees established under division (A) or (B) of this section.

Sec. 4928.58. (A) There is hereby created the public benefits advisory board, which has the purpose of ensuring that energy services be provided to

low-income consumers in this state in an affordable manner consistent with the policy specified in section 4928.02 of the Revised Code. The advisory board shall consist of twenty-one members as follows: the director of development, the chairperson of the public utilities commission, the consumers' counsel, and the director of the air quality development authority, each serving ex officio and represented by a designee at the official's discretion; two members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, neither of the same political party, and two members of the senate appointed by the president of the senate, neither of the same political party; and thirteen members appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate, consisting of one representative of suppliers of competitive retail electric service; one representative of the residential class of electric utility customers; one representative of the industrial class of electric utility customers; one representative of the commercial class of electric utility customers; one representative of agricultural or rural customers of an electric utility; two customers receiving assistance under one or more of the low-income customer assistance programs, to represent customers eligible for any such assistance, including senior citizens; one representative of the general public; one representative of local intake agencies; one representative of a community-based organization serving low-income customers; one representative of environmental protection interests; one representative of lending institutions; and one person considered an expert in energy efficiency or renewables technology. Initial appointments shall be made not later than November 1, 1999.

(B) Initial terms of six of the appointed members shall end on June 30, 2003, and initial terms of the remaining seven appointed members shall end on June 30, 2004. Thereafter, terms of appointed members shall be for three years, with each term ending on the same day of the same month as the term it succeeds. Each member shall hold office from the date of the member's appointment until the end of the term for which the member was appointed. Members may be reappointed.

Vacancies shall be filled in the manner provided for original appointments. Any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring prior to the expiration date of the term for which the member's predecessor was appointed shall hold office as a member for the remainder of that term. A member shall continue in office after the expiration date of the member's term until the member's successor takes office or until a period of sixty days has elapsed, whichever occurs first.

(C) Board members shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary

expenses incurred in the performance of board duties. ~~Such~~ The reimbursements constitute, as applicable, administrative costs of the low-income customer assistance programs for the purpose of division (A) of section 4928.51 of the Revised Code or administrative costs of the energy efficiency revolving loan program for the purpose of division (A) of section 4528.61 of the Revised Code.

(D) The advisory board shall select a chairperson from among its members. Only board members appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate shall be voting members of the board; each shall have one vote in all deliberations of the board. A majority of the voting members constitute a quorum.

(E) The duties of the advisory board shall be as follows:

(1) Advise the director in the administration of the universal service fund and the low-income customer assistance programs and advise the director on the director's recommendation to the commission regarding the appropriate level of the universal service rider;

(2) Advise the director on the administration of the energy efficiency revolving loan program and the energy efficiency revolving loan program fund under sections 4928.61 to 4928.63 of the Revised Code.

(F) The advisory board is not an agency, ~~as defined in section 101.82 of the Revised Code,~~ for purposes of ~~divisions (A) and (B) of section 101.84 sections 101.82 to 101.87~~ of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5101.343. ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does do~~ not apply to the Ohio commission on fatherhood.

Sec. 5153.66. The director of job and family services shall establish the training program steering committee. ~~Section 101.84~~ Sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code ~~does do~~ not apply to the committee.

Sec. 6301.04. The governor shall establish a state workforce policy board and appoint members to the board, who serve at the governor's pleasure, to perform duties under the "Workforce Investment Act of 1998," 112 Stat. 936, 29 U.S.C.A. 2801, as amended, as authorized by the governor. The board is not subject to ~~section 101.84~~ sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code. The director of job and family services may assist the board in the performance of its duties.

SECTION 2. That existing sections 101.84, 173.58, 183.04, 183.12, 183.20, 3109.401, 3304.24, 3318.30, 3333.373, 3701.264, 3717.02, 4723.71, 4765.04, 4928.58, 5101.343, 5153.66, and 6301.04 of the Revised Code are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. That Section 27 of Sub. H.B. 670 of the 121st General Assembly be amended to read as follows:

" Sec. 27. The following agencies shall be retained pursuant to division (D) of section ~~101.84~~ 101.83 of the Revised Code and shall expire on December 31, 2001, pursuant to the version of section 101.84 of the Revised Code that takes effect on January 1, 1997, with the exception of the Muskingum River Advisory Board which shall expire on June 29, 1998, pursuant to Section 2 of Am. H.B. 351 of the 117th General Assembly 2004:

AGENCY NAME	REVISED CODE OR <u>UNCODIFIED</u> SECTION
Advisory Board <u>Council</u> on Amusement Ride Safety	1711.51
Advisory Board of Directors for Prison Labor	5145.162
Appalachian Public Facilities Task Force <u>Council</u>	Sec. 3, H.B. 280, 121st GA
Apprenticeship Council	4111.26
Armory Board of Control	5911.09
Banking Board <u>Commission</u>	1127.02 <u>1123.01</u>
Board of Voting Machine Examiners	3506.05(B)
Board of Governors, Medical Malpractice Joint Underwriting Association	3929.77
Board of Tax Appeals	5703.02
Board on Unreclaimed Strip Mine Lands	1513.29
<u>Brain Injury Advisory Committee</u>	<u>3304.231</u>
Capitol Square Review and Advisory Board	105.41
Child Support Guideline Advisory Commission <u>Council</u>	3113.215(G)
Children's Trust Fund Board	3109.15
Citizen's Advisory Board <u>Council</u> (Dept. of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities)	5123.092
Citizen's Advisory Board <u>Council</u> (Dept. of Mental Health)	5119.81
Civilian Conservation Advisory Council <u>Committee</u>	1553.10
Coastal Resources Advisory Council	1506.12

Commission on African-American Males	4112.12
Commission on Spanish-Speaking <u>Hispanic-Latino Affairs</u>	121.31
Committee of Blind Vendors	3304.34
Commodity Advisory Commission	926.32
Community Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities Trust Fund <u>Advisory Board Council</u>	5123.353
Continuing Education Committee (for sheriffs)	109.80
Controlling Board	127.12
Council on Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services	3793.09
<u>Council on Unreclaimed Strip Mine Lands</u>	<u>1513.29</u>
County Sheriff's <u>Sheriffs'</u> Standard Car Marking and Uniform Commission	311.25
Criminal Sentencing Advisory Committee	181.22
Day-Care Advisory Council	5104.08
Development Financing Advisory Board <u>Council</u>	122.40
Electrical Safety Inspector Advisory Board <u>Committee</u>	3783.08
Engineering Experiment Station Advisory Council <u>Committee</u>	3335.27
Environmental Board of Review <u>Appeals</u> <u>Commission</u>	3745.02
Environmental Education Board of Trustees <u>Council</u>	3745.21
Forestry Advisory Council	1503.40
Governor's Community Service Commission <u>Council</u>	121.40
Governor's Council on People with Disabilities	3303.41
Hazardous Waste Facility Board	3734.05
Head Injury Advisory Council	3304.231
Health Care Quality Advisory Council	4121.442
Health Data Advisory Committee	3729.61
Hemophilia Advisory Committee <u>Council</u>	3701.145
Historic Site Preservation Advisory Board	149.301
Home Health Agency Advisory Council	3701.88
Hospital Advisory Committee and the Medical Advisory Committee of the Joint Underwriting	3929.77 <u>3929.76</u>

Association Board of Governors	
Industrial Commission	4121.02
Industrial Commission Nominating Committee <u>Council</u>	4121.04
Industrial Technology and Enterprise Advisory Board <u>Council</u>	122.29
Insurance Agent Education Advisory Board <u>Council</u>	3905.483
Interagency Recycling Market Development Workgroup	1502.10
Joint Committee on Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities	401.37
Joint Select Committee on Volume Cap	133.021
Labor-Management Government Advisory Committee <u>Council</u>	4121.70
Lake Erie Commission	1506.21
Legal Rights Service Commission	5123.60
Martha Kinney Cooper Ohioana Library	3375.62
Association Board of Trustees	
Maternal and Child Health Consultants' Group <u>Council</u>	3701.025
Medicaid Long-Term Care Reimbursement Study Committee <u>Council</u>	5111.34
Medically Handicapped Children's Medical Advisory Committee <u>Council</u>	3701.025
Milk Sanitation Board	3717.69 <u>917.03</u>
Mine Subsidence Insurance Governing Board	3929.51
Multi-Agency Radio Communication Systems Steering Committee	Sec. 21, H.B. 790, 120th GA
Multidisciplinary Board <u>Council</u>	3746.03
Muskingum River Advisory Board	1501.25
National Museum of Afro-American History and Culture Planning Council <u>Committee</u>	149.303
Ohio Advisory Council for the Aging	173.03
Ohio Arts Council	3379.02
Ohio Arts <u>and Sports</u> Facilities Commission	3383.02
Ohio Benefit Systems Data Linkage Committee	125.24
Ohio Bicentennial Commission	149.32
Ohio Cemetery Dispute Resolution Committee <u>Commission</u>	4767.05

Ohio Commission on Dispute Resolution and Conflict Management	179.02
Ohio Educational Telecommunications Network Commission	3353.02
Ohio Ethics Commission	102.05
Ohio Expositions Commission	991.02
Ohio Family and Children First Cabinet Council	121.37
Ohio Geology Advisory Council	1505.11
Ohio Grape Industries Committee	924.51
Ohio Historical Society Board of Trustees	149.30
<u>Ohio Lake Erie Commission</u>	<u>1506.21</u>
Ohio Medical Quality Foundation	3701.89
Ohio Natural Areas Council	1517.03
Ohio Parks and Recreation Advisory Council	1541.40
Ohio Peace Officer Training Council <u>Commission</u>	109.71
Ohio Public Defender Commission	120.01
Ohio Quarter Horse Development Committee <u>Commission</u>	3769.086
Ohio Retirement Study Commission	471.01
Ohio Scenic Rivers Advisory Councils	1517.18
Ohio Small Government Capital Improvements Commission	164.02
Ohio Soil and Water Conservation Commission	1515.02
Ohio Standardbred Development Committee <u>Commission</u>	3769.085
Ohio Steel Industry Advisory Commission <u>Council</u>	122.97
Ohio Student Aid Commission	3351.05
Ohio Teacher Education and Certification <u>Licensure Advisory Commission Council</u>	3319.282 <u>3319.28(D)</u>
Ohio Thoroughbred Racing Advisory Committee	3769.084
Ohio Tuition Trust Authority	3334.03
Ohio University College of Osteopathic Medicine Advisory Board <u>Committee</u>	3337.10
<u>Ohio Vendors Representative Committee</u>	<u>3304.34</u>
Ohio Veterans <u>Veterans'</u> Home Board of Trustees	5907.02
Ohio War Orphans' <u>Orphans</u> Scholarship Board	5910.02

Ohio Water Advisory Council	1521.031
Oil and Gas Board of Review <u>Commission</u>	1509.35
Organized Crime Investigations Commission	177.01
Parole Board	5149.10
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee of the Dept. of Human Services	5111.81
Physical Fitness and Sports Advisory Board	3701.77
Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund Board of Trustees	742.03
Power Siting Board	4906.02
Private Water Systems Advisory Board <u>Council</u>	3701.346
Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board	145.72
Public Employees Retirement Board	145.04
Public Employment Risk Reduction Advisory Commission	4167.02
Public Utilities Commission Nominating Council	4901.021
Reclamation Board of Review <u>Commission</u>	1513.05
Recreation and Resources Commission	1501.04
Recycling and Litter Prevention Advisory Council	1502.04
Rehabilitation Services Commission Consumer Advisory Council <u>Committee</u>	3304.24
School Employees Retirement Board	3309.04
Select Commission on Pyrotechnics	Sec. 3, H.B. 508, 119th GA
Services Committee of the Workers' Compensation System	4121.06
Set Aside Review Board	123.151(C)(4)
Small Business Stationary Source Technical and Environmental Compliance Assistance Council	3704.19
Solid Waste Management Advisory Council	3734.51
State Board of Deposit	135.02
State Board of Library Examiners	3375.47
State Board <u>Council</u> of Uniform State Laws	105.21
State Committee for the Purchase of Products and Services of Persons with Severe Disabilities	4115.32
State Criminal Sentencing Commission	181.21
State Fire Commission	3737.81

State Highway Patrol Retirement Board	5505.04
State and Local Government Commission of Ohio	105.45
State Teachers Retirement Board	3307.04
State Victims Assistance Advisory Board <u>Committee</u>	109.91
Student Tuition Recovery Authority	3332.081
Subcommittee of the State Board of Emergency Medical Services for Fire Fighter <u>Firefighter</u> and Fire Safety Inspector Training	4765.55
Submerged Lands Advisory Committee <u>Council</u>	1506.37
Tax Credit Authority	122.17
Technical Advisory Committee to assist the Director of the Ohio Coal Development Office	1551.35
Technical Advisory Council on Oil and Gas	1509.38
Technology Advisory Committee (for Education)	Sec. 45.01, H.B. 117, 121st GA
Unemployment Compensation Board of Review <u>Commission</u>	4141.06
Unemployment Compensation Advisory Commission <u>Council</u>	4141.08
Utility Radiological Safety Board	4937.02
Veterans Advisory Board <u>Committee</u>	5902.02(K)
Water and Sewer Commission	1525.11(C)
Waterways Safety Council	1547.73
Welfare Oversight Commission <u>Council</u>	5101.93
Wildlife Council	1531.03
Women's Policy and Research Commission	121.51
Workers' Compensation System Oversight <u>Oversight</u> Committee	Sec. 10, H.B. 222, 118th GA
Wright-Dunbar State Heritage Commission	149.321"

SECTION 4. That existing Section 27 of Sub. H.B. 670 of the 121st General Assembly is hereby repealed.

SECTION 5. That Section 3 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 123rd General Assembly be amended to read as follows:

" Sec. 3. (A) Sections 3301.90, 3301.91, and 3301.92 of the Revised

Code are hereby repealed, effective July 1, 2004.

(B) The OhioReads Council is not subject to ~~section 101.84~~ sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code. The Council expires on July 1, 2004, as provided in division (A) of this section, and not on the date otherwise prescribed by section ~~101.84~~ 101.83 of the Revised Code.

(C) Not later than January 1, 2004, the Director of Budget and Management shall submit a written recommendation to the Governor, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the President of the Senate of a governmental entity to assume the duties of the OhioReads Council beginning July 1, 2004, if the General Assembly does not continue the Council's existence."

SECTION 6. That existing Section 3 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 123rd General Assembly is hereby repealed.

SECTION 7. That Section 4 of Sub. H.B. 538 of the 123rd General Assembly be amended to read as follows:

" Sec. 4. The Joint Council on Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities is retained pursuant to division (D) of section ~~101.84~~ 101.83 of the Revised Code and, pursuant to that section, expires on December 31, 2004."

SECTION 8. That existing Section 4 of Sub. H.B. 538 of the 123rd General Assembly is hereby repealed.

SECTION 9. The Sunset Review Committee created by section 101.84 of the Revised Code, as enacted by this act, shall review the implementation and operation of sections 101.82 to 101.87 of the Revised Code. As part of its review, the Committee shall determine whether there is a need to establish a permanent legislative committee to conduct an ongoing review of existing state agencies and an ongoing evaluation of proposed new state agencies and determine what role, if any, the Department of Administrative Services could play in an ongoing review and evaluation process of that nature. The Committee shall report the findings and recommendations resulting from the review it conducts under this section to the Governor, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the President of the Senate at the same time it submits the report required by section 101.87 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 10. Sections 101.84, 101.85, 101.86, and 101.87 of the Revised Code, as enacted by this act, are hereby repealed on December 31, 2004.

SECTION 11. Notwithstanding the time frames established by divisions (A) and (C) of section 101.84 of the Revised Code, as enacted by this act, appointments shall be made to the Sunset Review Committee in 2001 within fifteen days after the effective date of this section, and the Committee shall have its first meeting in 2001, not later than thirty days after the effective date of this section.

SECTION 12. Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11 of this act shall take effect on January 1, 2001.

Speaker _____ *of the House of Representatives.*

President _____ *of the Senate.*

Passed _____, 20____

Approved _____, 20____

Governor.

The section numbering of law of a general and permanent nature is complete and in conformity with the Revised Code.

Director, Legislative Service Commission.

Filed in the office of the Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio, on the
____ day of _____, A. D. 20____.

Secretary of State.

File No. _____ Effective Date _____